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1 DISCLAIMER 

This information memorandum is to introduce the subject matter and provide a 

general idea and information on the said matter. Although, the material included in 

this document is based on data/information gathered from various reliable 

sources; however, it is based upon certain assumptions, which may differ from 

case to case. The information has been provided on as is where is basis without 

any warranties or assertions as to the correctness or soundness thereof. Although, 

due care and diligence has been taken to compile this document, the contained 

information may vary due to any change in any of the concerned factors, and the 

actual results may differ substantially from the presented information. SMEDA, its 

employees or agents do not assume any liability for any financial or other loss 

resulting from this memorandum in consequence of undertaking this activity. The 

contained information does not preclude any further professional advice. The 

prospective user of this memorandum is encouraged to carry out additional 

diligence and gather any information which is necessary for making an informed 

decision, including taking professional advice from a qualified consultant/technical 

expert before taking any decision to act upon the information. 

For more information on services offered by SMEDA, please contact our website: 

www.smeda.org.pk 

 

Document Control 
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Revision No.01 
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2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

A Garlic Powder and Paste Production Unit is proposed for locations including 

Quetta, Loralai, Mach, Sibi, Harnai, Duki, Qilla Abdullah, Pishin, Karak, Dera 

Ismail Khan, Kohat, Attock, Hub, Lahore, Faisalabad, Multan, Gujranwala, and 

others. The products will include Garlic Powder and Garlic Paste, with an installed 

capacity of 1,044,000 Kgs and initial utilization of 783,000 Kgs (75%). 

The Total Cost Estimates for the project is Rs. 400.41 million with a fixed 

investment of Rs. 46.61 million and working capital of Rs. 354 million. The project 

has an Internal Rate of Return (IRR) of 47%, Net Present Value (NPV) Rs. 

2,756,372,416 and a payback period of 4.67 years. Leveraged financing at 50% 

with a cost of 28% provides a Net Present Value (NPV) of Rs. 4047368079, IRR of 

41%, and a payback period of 5.17 years. 

Critical factors for the project's success include the large quantity of garlic 

production in the country, availability of three varieties mix, hardworking and low-

cost labor, increasing trends towards garlic powder and paste, and established 

world markets with improved technological changes. 

Equally important considerations involve emphasizing excellent customer services, 

acquiring new machinery for increased efficiency and lower maintenance costs, 

considering refurbished standardized machinery, adapting to rapid changes, and 

hiring well-trained/experienced staff to enhance facility efficiency. 

 

3 INTRODUCTION TO SMEDA 

The Small and Medium Enterprises Development Authority (SMEDA) was 

established in October 1998 with an objective to provide fresh impetus to the 

economy through development of Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs).  

With a mission "to assist in employment generation and value addition to the 

national income, through development of the SME sector, by helping increase the 

number, scale and competitiveness of SMEs", SMEDA has carried out ‘sectoral 

research’ to identify policy, access to finance, business development services, 

strategic initiatives and institutional collaboration and networking initiatives.  

Preparation and dissemination of prefeasibility studies in key areas of investment 

has been a successful hallmark of SME facilitation by SMEDA.  

Concurrent to the prefeasibility studies, a broad spectrum of business 

development services is also offered to the SMEs by SMEDA. These services 

include identification of experts and consultants and delivery of need based 
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capacity building programs of different types in addition to business guidance 

through help desk services. 

4 PURPOSE OF THE DOCUMENT 

The main objective of conducting the pre-feasibility study is to assist potential 

entrepreneurs in identifying investment opportunities. This study serves as a 

crucial tool for making informed investment decisions by covering essential 

aspects of project development, startup, production, marketing, finance, and 

business management. 

In the context of the Garlic Powder and Paste Production Unit, this document aims 

to provide potential investors with a comprehensive overview of the business. Its 

purpose is to support investors in making crucial investment decisions by offering 

insights into the project's concept, initiation, production processes, marketing 

strategies, financial considerations, and overall business management. 

The significance of creating pre-feasibility reports becomes even more evident in 

sectors that lack proper documentation. Through research preceding such reports, 

valuable insights, including thumb rules, best practices learned through trial and 

error by existing enterprises, and industry norms, are revealed. These insights 

become essential guidelines for establishing and successfully managing a 

business. 

To make well-informed investment decisions, it is imperative to not only thoroughly 

study the entire document but also carefully consider the critical aspects outlined 

later on, as they form the foundation of any investment decision. 

 

5 BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT & PRODUCT 

This project envisions the production of Garlic powder and Garlic paste, presenting 

promising opportunities in household use, restaurants, hotels, and the export 

market. Particularly in the restaurant industry, where the use of garlic is 

indispensable for seasoning various dishes, the project offers a time-saving 

solution for workers who would otherwise spend hours peeling cloves. This time 

efficiency can be redirected towards more productive tasks.  

Garlic (Allium sativum), belonging to the onion genus Allium, is the second most 

widely cultivated allium after onion. Recognized worldwide for its value as a spice 

and popular remedy for ailments, garlic has a history spanning several thousand 

years. Native to Central Asia and northeastern Iran, it has been a common 

seasoning globally and was known to ancient Egyptians. In Ancient Rome, it was 
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extensively used for food, particularly among the less affluent. China dominates 

global garlic production, supplying about 80% of the world's garlic. 

Garlic is widely grown and consumed in Pakistan, with applications in flavoring 

various dishes. Approximately 50% of fresh garlic output in America is dehydrated 

and sold to food processors. In Pakistan, the Middle East, and other countries, 

garlic is extensively used in food preparation, including dishes, curry powders, 

curried vegetables, meat, and different sauces. 

Key garlic-producing countries include China, Turkey, India, Thailand, Korea, 

Egypt, and Pakistan. The proposed business promises a higher return on 

investment, anticipating steady growth, particularly for processors with prior 

experience or education in the relevant field. This pre-feasibility study provides 

crucial information for starting the production of processed garlic, including garlic 

powder and paste. 

Garlic is known for its rich composition of carbohydrates, protein, and 

phosphorous. Green garlic, in particular, boasts a high ascorbic acid content. The 

nutritive composition of both fresh peeled garlic and dehydrated garlic powder is 

well-documented. 

 

Particular Fresh peeled garlic cloves Dehydrated garlic powder

Moisture% 62.8 5.2

Protien% 6.3 17.5

Fat% 0.1 0.6

mineral matter% 1 3.2

Fibre% 0.8 1.9

Carbohydrates% 29 71.4

Calcium% 0.03 0.1

Phosphours% 0.31 0.42

Potassium% 0 1.1

Iron% 0.001 0.004

Niacin% 0 0.7

Sodium% 0 0.01

Vitamin A.I.U. 0 175

Nicotinic acid(mg/100g) 0.4 0

Vitamin C (mg/100g) 13 12

Vitamin B(mg/100g) 0 0.68

Vitamin B2 (mg/100g) 0 0.08  
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5.1 Health Benefits 

Garlic stands out as a superb provider of manganese and vitamin B6, offering an 

abundance of vitamin C and copper, while also delivering selenium, phosphorus, 

vitamin B1, and calcium. However, the true stars contributing to its overall health 

benefits are the sulfur compounds found in garlic. These compounds, containing 

sulfur, offer a range of health advantages across various body systems, including 

the cardiovascular system, immune system, inflammatory system, digestive 

system, endocrine system, and detoxification system. 

5.2 Sulfur-Containing Compounds in Garlic 

Examining the six categories of sulfur-containing compounds provides an initial 

glimpse into the intricate nature of this allium vegetable. Each of these compounds 

has undergone extensive study regarding potential health benefits. However, it's 

important to highlight that the majority of these studies have not centered on the 

presence of compounds in fresh garlic as a food source. Instead, the focus has 

primarily been on garlic supplements, including oils, tablets, powders, or other 

extract forms. 

5.3 Description 

Garlic, along with onions, falls under the category of "allium vegetables," both 

belonging to the Allium genus. Interestingly, "Allium" is the Latin term for garlic. 

Other well-known members of this genus include leeks, chives, scallions, and 

shallots. 

While the classification of garlic in the Allium genus is straightforward, its 

placement in the broader amaryllis family (Amaryllidaceae) can be perplexing. This 

extensive family includes the popular flower of the same name. Garlic, specifically 

Allium sativum, is part of the Allioideae subfamily within the amaryllis family. This 

subfamily also encompasses onions, leeks, chives, scallions, and shallots. 

Garlic is uniquely structured in a head, referred to as a "bulb," typically measuring 

around 2 inches in height and diameter. The bulb is composed of numerous small 

individual cloves, all enveloped in paper-like sheaths that may be white, off-white, 

or exhibit a pink/purple hue. Despite the firm texture of garlic cloves, they can be 

easily cut or crushed. The taste of garlic is unparalleled, delivering a hot pungency 

to the palate, complemented by a subtle underlying sweetness. 

Garlic varieties are commonly categorized into four types. 

 Hardneck 

 Softneck 

 Black 
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 Creole 

Hardneck garlic earns its name due to its tough and woody central stalk. Popular 

hardneck varieties include Purple Stripe, Rocambole, and Porcelain, with Purple 

Stripe exhibiting a light purplish or rosy tint on cloves and skins. Hardneck garlic 

typically packs more "bite" compared to softneck varieties, and they are often 

classified under Allium sativum subspecies ophioscorodon. 

Softneck garlic varieties, commonly found in grocery stores, are less pungent than 

hardneck types. Varieties like Formidable, Western Rose, Artichoke, and 

Silverskin fall into this category, labeled as Allium sativum subspecies sativum. 

Softneck garlic is often seen braided in supermarkets. 

Creole garlic, sometimes treated as a softneck type, may also be considered a 

distinct garlic type based on genetic evidence. Recognizable by the rosy/purplish 

color of the entire bulb, Creole garlic varieties like Burgundy, Ajo Rojo, Cuban 

Purple, and Creole Red are less common in grocery stores. 

Black garlic is created through heat treatment, high humidity, and aging. Over 

several weeks, the garlic cloves transform into a rich black color. Popular in 

Korean, Japanese, and Thai cuisine, black garlic is sometimes referred to as 

"fermented garlic," though this term is controversial as it doesn't involve the 

addition of microorganisms typically associated with fermentation. 

Elephant garlic (Allium ampeloprasum) is an intriguing garlic variant closely related 

to leeks (Allium porrum) rather than traditional garlic. Its tall flower stalk and large 

purplish flower head make it resemble an oversized garlic. Unlike leeks, elephant 

garlic forms a bulb with large cloves, usually numbering three to four per bulb. 

5.4 How to Select and Store 

We advocate for the selection of certified organically grown foods, and garlic is no 

different. Multiple research studies on organic foods collectively indicate that 

opting for certified organic foods, including garlic, significantly lowers the risk of 

exposure to contaminants such as pesticides and heavy metals. 

To preserve the freshness of fresh garlic, store it in a cool, dark place, either 

uncovered or loosely covered, away from heat and sunlight. This practice not only 

helps maintain its optimal freshness but also prevents sprouting, which can 

diminish its flavor and lead to unnecessary waste. Refrigerating garlic is 

unnecessary. 
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Depending upon its age and variety, whole garlic bulbs will keep fresh for about a 

month if stored properly. Inspect the bulb frequently and remove any cloves that 

appear to be dried out or moldy. Once you break the head of garlic, it greatly 

reduces its shelf life to just a few days. 

5.5 Local Industry 

In a significant breakthrough, Pakistani scientists have achieved a milestone in 

agriculture by introducing the highest-yield garlic variety, ‘NARC-G1,’ suitable for 

cultivation in all provinces of the country. This achievement is part of the garlic 

variety development program initiated under the vegetable crop research program 

at the National Agricultural Research Centre (NARC). 

The 'NARC-G1' garlic variety stands out as the highest-yielding among existing 

variants in Pakistan, boasting superior quality and an impressive yield of 26 tonnes 

per hectare. This variety not only has elevated nutrient contents and medicinal 

value but is also well-suited for applications in the pharmaceutical, food processing 

industry, and households. The introduction of this variety is anticipated to increase 

farmers' income, thanks to reduced plant protection costs and higher yield 

potential, ultimately contributing to a decrease in the import bill. 

The presentation of the newly-developed garlic variety took place at a meeting of 

the variety evaluation committee, comprised of agricultural research scientists 

from across the country, convened by the Pakistan Agriculture Research Council. 

The objective was to assess the potential of this groundbreaking variant. 

Pakistan's current reliance on garlic imports, driven by high demand and low yield 

potential of existing varieties, has led to substantial foreign exchange expenditure. 

The country imports approximately 34,375 tonnes of garlic from China, India, and 

Chile, amounting to Rs66 million. In contrast, the domestic garlic production 

stands at 70,925 tonnes, cultivated across 7,882 hectares, with an average yield 

of 8.99 tonnes per hectare. Khyber-Pakhtunkhwa emerges as the leading garlic-

producing province with 32,205 tonnes, followed by Punjab (24,143 tonnes), 

Balochistan (7,880 tonnes), and Sindh (6,557 tonnes). 

Addressing key parameters outlined in the pre-feasibility study is crucial in further 

advancing this groundbreaking development. 

 

 Technology: This envisioned facility will incorporate state-of-the-art 

processing and production machinery, encompassing tools such as a Garlic 

splitter, Garlic peeler, comprehensive compressor for peeling, Disinfection 
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washing bath, Cooling coil designed for disinfection with hydro cooling, and a 

Drying line equipped with turbines for peeled garlic cloves, among others. 

 Location: The unit would be located in or near an area where the raw material 

is available easily like be located at Quetta, Loralai, Mach, Sibi, Harnai, Qilla 

Abdullah, Pishin, Karak, Dear Ismail Khan, Kohat, Attock, Hub, Lahore, 

Faisalabad, Multan, Gujranwala, and Karachi or any other site where raw 

material can be transported easily. 

 Product: The unit would produce Garlic Paste and Garlic Powder for 

commercial and residential uses. 

 Target Market: In addition to local markets in Karachi, Lahore, Rawalpindi, 

Quetta, Peshawar, and Islamabad an enormous export market for the Pakistani 

Garlic Paste and Garlic Powder exists in Middle East, India, Europe and China 

etc. 

 Employment Generation: The proposed project will provide direct 

employment to 11 people. Financial analysis shows the unit shall be profitable 

from the very first year of operation. 
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5.6 Production Process Flow  

 

5.7 Manufacturing Process: 

 

5.7.1 Preparing and Processing Garlic powder 

1. Fresh garlic bulbs 

2. Sharp knife or garlic press 

3. Dehydrator or oven 

4. Food processor or spice grinder 

5. Airtight containers for storage 

 Select Fresh Garlic: 

Choose fresh, firm garlic bulbs for the best flavor and quality. 
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 Peel the Garlic: 

Peel the garlic cloves from the bulbs. You can use a knife or a garlic press to 
separate the cloves from the bulb. 

 Mince or Crush the Garlic: 

You can either finely mince the garlic with a knife or use a garlic press to crush it. 
The goal is to increase the surface area for drying. 

 Dehydrate the Garlic: 

 Dehydrator Method: Arrange the minced or crushed garlic on the 
dehydrator trays in a single layer. Follow the dehydrator manufacturer's 
instructions for garlic, typically drying at around 125°F (52°C) for 8-12 hours 
or until the garlic is completely dry and brittle. 

 Oven Method: If you don't have a dehydrator, you can use an oven. 
Spread the garlic on a baking sheet lined with parchment paper and set the 
oven to its lowest temperature (usually around 170°F or 75°C). Leave the 
oven door slightly ajar to allow moisture to escape. Check the garlic every 
hour until it's completely dry. 

 Grind into Powder: 

Once the garlic is dehydrated, allow it to cool. Transfer the dried garlic to a food 
processor or spice grinder and pulse until you achieve a fine powder. You may 
need to do this in batches. 

 Sieve (Optional): 

To ensure a smooth powder, you can sift the ground garlic through a fine mesh 
sieve to remove any larger particles. 

 Store in Airtight Containers: 

Transfer the garlic powder to airtight containers to preserve its flavor and prevent 
moisture from getting in. Store it in a cool, dark place. 

Tips: 

 Ensure the garlic is completely dry before grinding to avoid clumping. 

 Use a dedicated spice grinder or clean your grinder thoroughly after making 
garlic powder to prevent flavor contamination. 

 Adjust the quantities based on your preference and the size of your 
dehydrator or oven. 
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5.8 Preparing and Processing Garlic Paste 

 Ingredients and Materials: 

1. Fresh garlic bulbs 

2. Food processor or blender 

3. Salt (optional) 

4. Olive oil (optional) 

5. Airtight containers for storage 

5.8.1 Steps: 

 Select Fresh Garlic: 

Choose fresh, firm garlic bulbs for the best flavor. 

 Peel the Garlic: 

Peel the garlic cloves from the bulbs. You can use a knife or simply press down on 
the cloves with the flat side of a knife to loosen the peel. 

 Mince or Crush the Garlic: 

 Mincing: Use a sharp knife to finely chop the garlic cloves. 

 Crushing: Alternatively, you can use a garlic press to crush the garlic. This 
will produce a more liquid-like consistency. 

 Add Salt (Optional): 

If desired, add a pinch of salt to the minced or crushed garlic. Salt acts as a 
preservative and enhances the flavor. It also helps in breaking down the garlic into 
a smoother paste. 

 Blend into a Paste: 

Transfer the minced or crushed garlic to a food processor or blender. Blend until 
you achieve a smooth paste. You may need to scrape down the sides of the 
processor or blender to ensure even blending. 

  Adjust Consistency (Optional): 

 If the paste is too thick, you can add a small amount of olive oil while 
blending to reach the desired consistency. 
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 Some recipes may call for adding a bit of water, especially if you want a 
lighter paste. 

 Store in Airtight Containers: 

Transfer the garlic paste to a clean, airtight container. If you used olive oil, make 
sure to store it in the refrigerator. Without oil, it can be stored in the refrigerator for 
a shorter period or frozen for longer storage. 

Tips: 

 Adjust the amount of garlic, salt, and optional ingredients based on your 
taste preferences. 

 Use a clean and dry spoon each time you take out garlic paste to prevent 
contamination. 

 Label the container with the date to keep track of its freshness. 

By following these steps, you can easily prepare garlic paste at home. This 
versatile paste can be used in various dishes to add a rich garlic flavor. 

 
Varieties of garlic bulbs can be obtained from the local market. 

Selection:  

The garlic bulbs should be sorted and selected for the following characteristics like 

uniform shape and size, full matured with no greenness without sprouts and firm 

texture. The bulbs should be cleaned to remove dust/earth, chaff, dry stalk and 

any foreign materials. 

Separation:  

The clean bulbs are separated into cloves and winnowed to remove dust and dirt. 

The cloves graded for their size. The peels or skin of the garlic is filtered through 

one compartment, while the peeled garlic cloves leave through another 

compartment. 

Peeling:  

The outer skin of the cloves are to be removed off by peeler. Whole cloves were 

used for all the drying operations except freeze-drying.  

Dry centrifugation peeled garlic process 

It is called this because the machines used to peel garlic simulate the operation of 

a large washing machine. 
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The main difference is that this machine does it entirely dry, spinning hundreds of 

rotations per minute, which manages to detach the fragile outer layers of the 

garlic.  

Wet centrifugation peeled garlic process 

This process includes water in the centrifugation, which allows the peels or skin of 

the garlic to detach more easily. 

In this type of machine, the garlic is placed in a space where the centrifugation is 

carried out and water is received from an upper section. 

The difference is that in this type of process, the water is drained through a lower 

compartment, which carries the husks and residues of the garlic with it. 

All of the garlic cloves remain in the upper part, waiting to be released through a 

top hatch once the process is finished. 

This method, is equally useful and effective, while its difference lies basically in the 

use of compressed air on small amounts of garlic cloves. 

The machine works in such a way that it receives a portion of garlic and instantly 

releases compressed air, instantly breaking the peels or skin off of the garlic. 

These are expelled through a mesh and are released below, where a garbage 

container awaits them. This occurs while the garlic cloves follow a linear path after 

being cleaned, on the same upper mesh. 

5.9 Installed and Operational Capacities 

The total installed capacity of the project is 1,044,000 Kgs of Garlic Paste and 

Powder out of which 50% will be garlic paste and 50% will be garlic powder of total 

production capacity along with assumed operational capacity of 75% during the 

first year of operations i.e. 783,000 Kgs of Garlic Paste and Powder out of which 

391500 kgs of garlic powder and 391500 kg of garlic paste. A gradual increase of 

5% in production capacity per annum. 

 

 

5.10 Conversation ration fresh garlic to garlic powder. 

The conversion ratio of making garlic powder from fresh garlic can vary depending 
on factors such as the size and moisture content of the garlic cloves, as well as 
the drying method used. However, as a general guideline, you can expect the 
following conversion ratio: 
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 Fresh Garlic to Garlic Powder Ratio: 

Approximately (450 grams) of fresh garlic bulbs will yield roughly 140 grams) of 
garlic powder. 

It's important to note that the drying process removes the moisture content from 
the fresh garlic, resulting in a reduction in weight. Additionally, the potency and 
flavor concentration increase during the dehydration process. 

Keep in mind that these ratios are approximate, and actual yields may vary based 
on factors such as the efficiency of drying method and the specific characteristics 
of the garlic using. Adjustments may be needed based on preferences and the 
specific conditions of garlic powder production. 

5.11 Conversation ration fresh garlic to garlic Paste. 

While the conversion ratio of garlic to garlic paste can vary based on factors like 
the moisture content of the garlic and the desired consistency of the paste, a 
rough guideline is as follows: 

 Fresh Garlic to Garlic Paste Ratio: 

Approximately 1 kg (1000 grams) of fresh garlic bulbs may yield around 300 to 400 
grams of garlic paste. 

This is a general estimate, and the actual yield may vary depending on factors 
such as the size of the garlic cloves and the specific moisture content. The paste 
will be more concentrated than the fresh garlic due to the removal of moisture 
during the processing. 

Keep in mind that this is an approximation, and it's advisable to start with a smaller 
batch and adjust based on your preferences and the specific characteristics of the 
garlic you are using. 
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6 CRITICAL FACTORS 

Garlic Paste and Powder have a wide range of application, not only in Household 

sector but also in the Hoteling Sector. Certain critical factors involved during the 

production process of Garlic Paste and Garlic Powder are: 

 Identification of small scale, low cost Garlic processing 

machines/technology for setting up of rural enterprises. 

 Arrangement of raw material (Garlic) 

 Testing of Garlic processing machines available  

 Training of entrepreneurs in Garlic processing for value addition to be 

deputed  

 Problems observed during the operation of Garlic processing machines, if 

any. 

 Communicating the problem for improvement. 

 Standardization of the machines for commercial use by the rural 

entrepreneurs. 

 Identification of manufacturer for commercial production of the machine. 

 Availability of skilled labor. 

 Higher return on investment and a steady growth of business is closely 

associated with regular training and capacity building of the entrepreneur 

and employees. 

 Prior experience and related / education in the related field of business. 

 

 

7 GEOGRAPHICAL POTENTIAL FOR INVESTMENT 

It is suitable to establish the production unit Quetta, Swat, Hub, Khuzdar, Loralai 

Bostan, Peshawar, Lahore and Karachi. However, such a unit could be 

established in other parts of the country provided the main conditions are fulfilled 

such as availability of Garlic Bulb and man power availability, accessibility to 

markets, and reasonable demand & usage of Garlic Powder and Garlic Paste.   
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8 POTENTIAL TARGET CUSTOMERS / MARKETS 

Due to demand of garlic paste and garlic powder there exist a vast market 

required. Garlic paste and garlic powder was born from a real market demand. 

The garlic paste and garlic powder has good market potential. If the product is 

manufactured and packed in small quantities such as 50 gms and 100 gms 

packets. The market is widespread especially in rural areas. 

Especially in an urban area, people are looking for instant food and ginger paste 

make it happen all household consume this product. Apart from domestic use 

garlic paste and powder is used in hotels, restaurants are a major consumer. 

The local consumer is the main customer of this business; therefore, it has huge 

market through Pakistan. 

 

9 PROJECT COST SUMMARY 

9.1 Project Economics 

All the figures in this financial model have been calculated for estimated sales of 

Rs. 8,828,325,000/ in the year one. The capacity utilization during year one is 

worked out at 75% with 5% increase in subsequent years up to the maximum 

capacity utilization of 100%. 

The following table shows internal rate of return, payback period and net present 

value of the proposed venture. 

Table 1: Project Economics 

Description Details 

 Internal Rate of Return (IRR)  47% 

 Payback Period (yrs.)  4.67  

Net Present Value (Rs.) 2,756,372,416 

 

Calculation of break-even analysis is as follows: 

Table 2: Breakeven (100% Equity Based) 

BREAKEVEN ANALYSIS Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10

Break Even Point (Sales) 1,367,103,260   2,566,375,748   1,861,499,175   1,588,567,960   1,467,786,967   1,429,455,497        1,381,333,225        1,342,273,534        1,328,253,991        1,333,012,531        

Break Even Point (Unit) 111147 189681 125076 97034 81506 72161 63393 56000 50378 45962

Margin of Safety 84.5% 77.2% 85.8% 89.6% 91.7% 93.1% 93.9% 94.6% 95.2% 95.6%  
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Project Financing 

Following table provides details of the equity required and variables related to 

bank loan; 

Table3: Project Financing 

Description Details 

Total Equity (100%) Rs. 400,409,891 

Internal Rate of Return (IRR) 47% 

Payback Period (Yrs.) 4.67 

Net Present Value (Rs.) 2,756,372,416 

 

Following table provides details of the equity required and variables related to 

bank loan; 

 

Table 4: Project Financing 

Description Details 

Total Equity (50%) Rs. 200,204,945 

Bank Loan (50%) Rs. 200,204,945 

Markup to the Borrower (%age / annum) 28% 

Tenure of the Loan (Years) 5.18 Years 

 

9.2 Project Cost 

Following fixed and working capital requirements have been identified for 
operations of the proposed business.  
 

Table 5: Project Cost 

Description Amount Rs. 

Capital Cost 

Land 14,000,000 

Building / Infrastructure 15,800,000 

Plant and Machinery  15,310,800 

Furniture & Fixture  252,000 
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Office Equipment 305,000 

Pre-operating Cost 444,000 

Total Capital Cost 46,111,800 

Working Capital 

Equipment Spare Parts Inventory 598,125 

Raw Material Inventory 352,893,750 

Up-front Insurance Payments 306,216 

Cash 500,000 

Total Working Capital 354,298,091 

Total Project Cost 400,409,891 

9.3 Space Requirement 

The space requirement for the proposed Garlic Paste and Garlic Powder 

production Unit is estimated considering various facilities including management 

office, production hall, storage, open space, etc. Details of space requirement and 

cost related to land & building is given below; 

Table6: Space Requirment 

Description 
Estimated Area 

(Sq.ft.) 
Unit Cost 

(Rs.) 
Total Cost 

(Rs.) 

Management Office 2,000 1,100 2,200,000 

Processing Area 5,000 800 4,000,000 

Raw Material Shed 5,000 800 4,000,000 

Laboratory 1,000 1,100 2,200,000 

Drive way / Pavement 10,000 50 500,000 

Store 5,000 800 4,000,000 

Total 28,000  15,800,000 
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9.4 Machinery & Equipment Requirement 

Plant, machinery and equipment for the proposed project are stated below.  
 

Table7: Machinery & Equipment 

Description  Quantity Unit Cost  

(Rs.) 

Total Cost 
(Rs.) 

Garlic splitter 450 Kg/hour  1 2,622,600 2,622,600 

Garlic peeler 200 Kg/hour 2 423,000 423,000 

Complete compressor for peeler 2 296,100 592,200 

 Disinfection washing bath 450L 1 3,200,000 3,200,000 

Cooling coil for disinfection with hydro 
cooling  

1 500,000 500,000 

Drying line with turbines for peeled 
garlic cloves 

1 3,350,000 3,350,000 

Transformer 1 1,500,000 1,500,000 

Generator 1 1,500,000 1,500,000 

Tube Well 1 1200,000 1200,000 

Total   15,310,800 

 

9.5 Furniture & Fixtures Requirement 

Details of the furniture and fixture required for the project are given below;  
 

Table8: Furniture & Fixture 

Description  Quantity Unit Cost 
(Rs.) 

Total Cost 
(Rs.) 

Tables 6 15,000 90,000 

Executive Chairs 6 15,000 90,000 

Visitors Chairs 12 6,000 72,000 

Total   252,000 

 

9.6 Office Equipment Requirement 

Following office equipment will be required for Garlic Paste and Garlic Powder 
production Unit;  
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Table9: Office Equipment 

Description  Quantity Unit Cost 
(Rs.) 

Total Cost 
(Rs.) 

Laptop 2 125,000 250,000 

3 in 1 printer + Scanner + Photocopier 1 45,000 45,000 

Telephone Sets 2 5,000 10,000 

Total   305,000 

 

9.7 Human Resource Requirement 

In order to run operations of Garlic Paste and Garlic Powder production Unit 

smoothly, details of human resources required along with number of employees 

and monthly salary are recommended as under;  

 

Table10: Human Resource Requirment 

Description No. of Employees Monthly Salary 
per person (Rs.) 

CEO/ Manager 1 75,000 

Supervisor 1 50,000 

Accountant cum Receptionist 1 50,000 

Salesman 2 32,000 

Skilled Worker/ Machine Operator  2 40,000 

Loading Worker 1 40,000 

Security Guard 2 32,000 

Peon 1 32,000 

Total  11  

 

9.8 Utilities and other costs 

An essential cost to be borne by the project is the cost of electricity, gas and 

water. The electricity expenses are estimated to be around Rs. 195,228,000 / 

year. Furthermore, promotional expense being essential for marketing of Garlic 

Paste and Garlic Powder production Unit is estimated as 2% of revenue.  
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9.9 Revenue Generation 

Based on the capacity utilization of 75% for Garlic Paste and Garlic Powder Sales 
out of with 50% will be paste sell and 50% powder sale revenue during the first 
year of operations is estimated as under;  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 11: Revenue Generation – Year 1 

Description No. of 
Kgs 

Produced 
(No.) 

Finished 
Goods 

Inventory 
(No.) 

Units 
available 
for Sale 

(No.) 

Sale 
Price / 

unit 
(Rs.) 

Sales 
Revenue 

(Rs.) 

Garlic Paste 
 

391,500 
 

32625 
 

358,875 12300 4,414,162,500 

Garlic Powder 
 

391,500 
32625 

 
 

358,875 12300 4,414,162,500 

Total 
 

783,000 
 

65250 
 

717,750  8,828,325,000 

 

10 CONTACT DETAILS 

In order to facilitate potential investors, contact details of private sector Service 
Providers relevant to the proposed project be given. 

10.1 Machinery Suppliers 

Name of 
Supplier 

Address Phone Fax E-mail Website 

Turchmir 
Engineering 
(services) 
Comapny 

Nawab Chowk, 
Bagrian Road, 

Town ship, 
Lahore 

042-
35113377 

042-
35123388 

info@ 
turchmir 

.pk 

www. 
turchmir 

.pk 

 

10.2 Raw Material Suppliers 

Name of Supplier Address Phone Fax E-mail Website 

Khwaja Spices Golimar, 0300-2364558    



Pre-Feasibility Study                                                                        Garlic Powder and Paste Production Unit 

 

December 2023                           

25 

Sukkur 

Watan Dealer 
People 
Colony 
Attock 

057-2603333  
  

Shahmir 
Marketing 

Nazimabad, 
Karachi 

021-4915500  
  

 

10.3 Technical Experts / Consultants  

Name of 
Expert/ 

Organization 

Address Phone Fax E-
mail 

Website 

Pakistan 
Agricultural 
Research 
Council 

G-5, Islamabad 051-
90762000 

051-
9255034 

 
www.parc

.gov.pk 

 

11 USEFUL WEB LINKS 

 
Small & Medium Enterprises Development Authority 

(SMEDA) 

www.smeda.org.pk  

Government of Pakistan www.pakistan.gov.pk  

Ministry of Industries & Production www.moip.gov.pk 

Ministry of Education, Training & Standards in Higher 

Education 

http://moptt.gov.pk 

Government of Punjab www.punjab.gov.pk 

Government of Sindh www.sindh.gov.pk 

Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa www.khyberpakhtunkhwa.gov.pk 

Government of Balochistan www.balochistan.gov.pk 

Government of Gilgit Baltistan www.gilgitbaltistan.gov.pk 

Government of Azad Jamu Kashmir www.ajk.gov.pk  

Trade Development Authority of Pakistan (TDAP) www.tdap.gov.pk  

Security Commission of Pakistan (SECP) www.secp.gov.pk 

Federation of Pakistan Chambers of Commerce and 

Industry (FPCCI) 

www.fpcci.com.pk 

State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) www.sbp.org.pk 

Punjab Small Industries Corporation www.psic.gop.pk  

Sindh Small Industries Corporation www.ssic.gos.pk  

Pakistan Horticulture Development and Export Company www.phdec.org.pk  

http://www.smeda.org.pk/
http://www.pakistan.gov.pk/
http://www.moip.gov.pk/
http://moptt.gov.pk/
http://www.punjab.gov.pk/
http://www.sindh.gov.pk/
http://www.khyberpakhtunkhwa.gov.pk/
http://www.balochistan.gov.pk/
http://www.gilgitbaltistan.gov.pk/
http://www.ajk.gov.pk/
http://www.tdap.gov.pk/
http://www.secp.gov.pk/
http://www.fpcci.com.pk/
http://www.sbp.org.pk/
http://www.psic.gop.pk/
http://www.ssic.gos.pk/
http://www.phdec.org.pk/
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(PHDEC) 

Punjab Vocational Training Council (PVTC) www.pvtc.gop.pk  

Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority 

(TEVTA) 

www.tevta.org  

Pakistan Readymade Garment Technical Training Institute www.prgmea.org/prgtti/  

Pakistan Council of Scientific and Industrial Research 

(PCSIR). 

http://www.pcsir.gov.pk 

Punjab Industrial Estates (PIE) www.pie.com.pk 

Faisalabad Industrial Estate Development and Management 

Company (FIEDMC) 

www.fiedmc.com.pk  

 

http://www.pvtc.gop.pk/
http://www.tevta.org/
http://www.prgmea.org/prgtti/
http://www.pie.com.pk/
http://www.fiedmc.com.pk/
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12 ANNEXURES 

12.1 Income Statement 
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12.2 Balance Sheet  
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12.3 Cash Flow Statement  
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13 KEY ASSUMPTIONS 

13.1 Operating Assumptions 

Description Details 

Days operational per month 22.5 

Days operational per year 270 

13.2 Production Assumptions 

Description Details 

Maximum Capacity Utilization 100% 

Total Production of Kgs per day  3,163 

Total Production of Kgs per month  82,255 

Total Production of Kgs per year (100%) 1,044,000 
 

13.3 Economy Related Assumptions 

Description Details 

Electricity price growth rate 10% 

Wage growth rate 10% 

Sales price growth rate 10% 
 

13.4 Cash Flow Assumptions 

Description Details 

Accounts Receivable cycle (in days) 10 

Accounts payable cycle (in days) 30 
 


